
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 22 Mai 2019 

Amser: 09.15

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Llinos Madeley 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddPPIA@cynulliad.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat  

(09.15 - 09.30) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

2 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 8 

(09.30 - 10.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 42)  

 

Cynrychiolwyr GIG Cymru 

Dave Williams, Cyfarwyddwr yr Is-adran - Gwasanaethau Teulu a Therapi, 

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan 

Nicola Edwards, Pennaeth Diogelu, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Bae Abertawe 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 1 - Conffederasiwn GIG Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 2 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Bae Abertawe (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 3 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 4 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 5 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 6 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

(Saesneg yn unig) 

Egwyl  

(10.30 - 10.45) 

3 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 9 

(10.45 - 11.45) (Tudalennau 43 - 44)  

 

Y Bwrdd Diogelu Annibynnol Cenedlaethol  

Jane Randall, Cadeirydd y Bwrdd Diogelu Annibynnol Cenedlaethol  

Jan Pickles, Aelod o'r Bwrdd Diogelu Annibynnol Cenedlaethol  

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 7 - Y Bwrdd Diogelu Annibynnol Cenedlaethol 

(Saesneg yn unig) 

 

4 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - sesiwn 

dystiolaeth 10 

(11.45 - 12.40) (Tudalennau 45 - 56)  

 

Coleg Brenhinol Pediatreg ac Iechyd Plant, Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 

Teulu, Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol 

Dr Lorna Price, cynrychiolydd Cymru ar Bwyllgor Amddiffyn Plant canolog y 

Coleg Brenhinol Pediatreg ac Iechyd Plant 

Dr Rowena Christmas, cynrychiolydd o Goleg Brenhinol y Meddygon Teulu 

Michelle Moseley, cynrychiolydd o Goleg Brenhinol y Nyrsys 

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 8 - Coleg Brenhinol Pediatreg ac Iechyd Plant 

(Saesneg yn unig) 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 9 - Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon Teulu (Saesneg yn 

unig) 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papr 10 - Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol (Saesneg yn unig) 



5 Papur i’w nodi 

 

5.1 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus -  Diweddariad 

Llywodraeth Cymru ar y rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif 

 (Tudalennau 57 - 71)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur i'w nodi 1 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

(12.40)   

 

7 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - trafod y 

dystiolaeth 

(12.40 - 12.45)   

 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

  

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 1 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: The Welsh NHS Confederation 

 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

The proposed legislation will encourage the positive use of parenting and more acceptable 

forms of behavioural management. The Bill also supports the general principles of the United 

Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC), which serves to protect children 

from all forms of violence. 

Our members note that the emotional and mental harm that some children experience at a 

young age can be severe and long-standing, and so any measure that seeks to protect 

children and young people from the harmful effects of this harm are to be welcomed.  

By removing the defence of reasonable punishment, the Bill also provides greater clarity 

around the legality of providing a safeguarding service to children and families. This can only 

enhance the level of protection provided to children and young people. 

When caring for children, it is important to ensure that children can develop in an 

environment with clearly defined boundaries. This supports child development and future 

transitions into adulthood. Our members note that the differences between keeping a child 

safe and perpetrating abuse on a child are stark. For some parents, the transition from using 

physical interventions to using alternative behaviours can be a challenge and may require 

health visitors and school nurses to support early intervention approaches. In addition, 

Tudalen y pecyn 17

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


 

  

teaching children about healthy relationships in an education environment will be important 

to ensure change as a result of the introduction of legislation. 

In terms of the potential impact of the Bill on public bodies, our members note that the 

Welsh Government have engaged with “relevant public bodies, including the police and social 

services” (Explanatory Memorandum, para 4.12). This needs to be strengthened to include 

NHS bodies so that it can be embedded effectively into Health Board procedures on a local 

level, particularly in relation to safeguarding children training, and at a national level, through 

NHS Trusts. On an all-Wales level, these principles will also need to be embedded into the 

National Protection Procedures.  

 

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Overall, we feel that legislation is needed to deliver the overarching objectives of this Bill. 

Having legislation in place removes the possibility of confusion around the level of 

intervention that is permitted and therefore provides a greater level of protection to 

vulnerable children. Evidence suggests that parents who regularly experienced violence when 

they were children are more likely to act in a similar manner towards their own children and 

often take the view that “it did me no harm”. 

The proposed Bill is a clear demonstration that Wales is working towards being a forward-

looking nation that seeks to stamp-out historical attitudes towards how to chastise children 

that were, in many cases, then leading to significant emotional and mental harm to children 

and young people. The Bill is also part of a welcomed cultural shift that seeks to remove the 

view that the use of force (‘smacking’) in a child’s early development is synonymous with 

discipline. 

 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The introduction of the Bill in isolation will not achieve change; societal change is only 

achieved with sustained programmes of promotion and support. This will have a cost and 

resource implication for health practitioners working with families, particularly those working 

with vulnerable families and groups. Furthermore, ongoing public campaigns throughout the 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



 

  

Bill’s implementation are vital to achieving positive engagement between service users, the 

NHS and other public sector staff, which will need to be effectively managed and delivered 

across sectors. Against this background, we would suggest that an implementation group be 

established to oversee the early implementation stages of the proposed Bill. 

 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The Explanatory Memorandum largely addresses the points made above but does not 

provide sufficient clarity around the definitions of what is considered acceptable behaviour 

towards children (particularly in the case of vulnerable children and young people). Greater 

clarity would also be welcomed around some interchangeable terms e.g. “physical 

punishment” and “corporal punishment”.  

In addition, the Explanatory Memorandum does not address the resource costs (both in terms 

of finance and capacity) that would be required to implement the legislation across service 

users, carers and NHS staff e.g. information leaflets, support networks etc.  

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

A possible unintended consequence of the Bill could be a significant increase in demand for 

services that aim to support parents and guardians in providing alternatives to physical 

discipline. Examples of these include ‘The Incredible Years’ and ‘Triple P’ programmes. This 

support is currently in the form of universal service provision, universal targeted or early 

intervention programmes. These resources may experience higher demand once the defence 

of reasonable punishment is removed under the proposed Bill. 

The Bill may also result in increased demand for safeguarding children’s reports to social 

services and the police, which will require monitoring. This would likely impact health 

resources as the safeguarding team support health professionals in the safeguarding process. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 

  

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Costs related to the education and training of staff within the health and education sectors 

will be the main financial implication of the Bill. As mentioned above, the increase in demand 

placed on social services brought about by a potential increase in the number of 

safeguarding children’s reports must be considered a financial implication too given the 

challenging financial environment that local government services are currently experiencing. 

The Welsh Government state that they plan to build and maintain relationships with 

individuals and organisations to ensure that affected parties understand the changes that are 

anticipated under the new legislation. While we are supportive of this general principle, there 

needs to be clarity around the roles and responsibilities of affected parties and how the 

proposed changes will affect their duty to report under the Social Services and Well-being 

(Wales) Act 2014.  

The impact on Local Authority Single Points of Access (SPOA) will also need to be considered 

given the likely increase in cases they would receive under the proposed Bill. There is a need 

also to ensure a consistent approach to referrals made to statutory services, which would 

bring with it some financial implications for NHS bodies, local government and partner 

agencies. 

 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

The Welsh Government and the National Assembly for Wales have not shied away from 

enacting progressive, forward-thinking legislation in recent years. The most recent example of 

this is the smoking ban, which is to be extended to ban smoking outside hospitals and 

schools by summer 2019. Other recent examples include the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017, 

the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Social Services and Well-

being (Wales) Act 2014. Wales also became the first UK country to introduce the plastic bag 

charge in 2011, which has reduced plastic bag usage by 70%, and Wales’ stance on the ‘opt 

in/opt out’ organ donation system is another example of progressive policy that has been 

enacted. These examples provide an excellent backdrop to this legislation and we hope that 

the Assembly will continue to act in this vein when the proposed Bill is debated. 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 

  

Finally, the Explanatory Memorandum does not provide guidance on a situation where a 

Welsh child experiences physical punishment outside of Wales. Our members would 

appreciate guidance on this point. 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



  

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 2 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unin) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Swansea Bay University Health Board 

 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

Yes, the Health Board is in agreement with the Abolition of the Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment Wales Bill and the overarching objective to protect children’s rights by 

prohibiting physical punishments by parents.  Acknowledging that it will have an impact on 

Children, Parents, Social Care, Health, and Education.   

The reasons are outlined below. 

•Reasonable punishment can, under current UK law be used as a defence against common 

assault and Trespass Against the person by parents or guardians of children within in the 

home setting. Physical punishment within schools and other professionally run settings has 

been outlawed since 1986 under section 47 of the Education act (No 2) subsequently 

replaced by section 548 of the education act 1996. Therefore as the law stands currently 

children do not have the same level of protection from assault within the home as outside the 

home. The bill would provide equably status for children both in and outside the home to 

protection from Common Assault and Trespass against the Person. 

•The removal of such defence would see children viewed equally to adults within the UK and 

as such have the same rights of protection from Common assault and Trespass against the 

person. This is in line with other legislation such as VAWDASV, and compatible with Article 19 

Tudalen y pecyn 22

http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


  

of the UNCRC and current European Law. This would give children in Wales’s equitable status 

in the eyes of the law as adults.  

•The Bill doesn’t define acts carried out by the parents towards their children which would not 

be acceptable once the defence is removed. However the principals of the bill would imply 

that removing the defence will not interfere with the principal of common law which allows 

parents to physically intervene to keep a child safe from harm, or to ensure compliance with 

non-physical forms of discipline. 

Children learn what they live and any form of ‘violence’ is a learned response. Many parents 

already use other methods of reprimand that are successful and do not involve physical 

chastisement. There is a need to re-educate society in this regard and also support parents in 

learning interventions that facilitate them dealing with a child’s behaviours via a non-physical 

approach 

Nobody can define reasonable chastisement, it is a very fluid concept, for example if 

individuals smack do they all use the same force? 

Physical abuse is often chastisement that goes too far and it does nothing to teach children 

about acceptable boundaries and acceptable behaviour and provides a bad example of how 

to manage strong emotions. This may lead children to hit and bully others or encourage 

children to hide and lie to avoid being smacked. It can make defiant behaviour worse so 

discipline gets harder which can lead to a resentful and angry child.  

Damages family relationships. 

Smacking is often not effective and often damaging to the child. 

s.58 of the Children Act 2004 continues to breach Article 19 UNRCC by failing to provide 

children with equal protection under the law of common assault. 

 

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Yes, predominantly to ensure that children’s rights are upheld and that they are afforded the 

same level of protection in law as adults. And that the UK is in line with the UNCRC. 

In addition evidence from research suggests that countries where the legislation has changed 

and the defence removed report there is a shift in social thinking in respect of the use of 

physical punishment as a form of discipline of children. Evidence suggests that once the 

defence is removed adults shift their approaches to discipline to non-physical forms of 

behaviour management where there is a growing evidence base of efficacy.  

Tudalen y pecyn 23



  

Also it must be noted what constitutes reasonable physical chastisement is a very subjective 

notion and as a result it requires legislation to protect children and young people if their 

UNCRC rights under Article 19 are to be met. 

As the practice is deeply embedded in our culture, and as such will take a long time to 

change, without the force of legislation behind it the physical chastisement of children and 

young people would continue and so become embedded as a ‘norm’ for the next generation 

of parents in many families. 

Legislation is needed to deliver what this Bill is trying to achieve because there needs to be a 

cultural change in attitudes to smacking children it is not viewed generally as assault. 

However research is 50-50 as to whether legislation would be beneficial. In Sweden the 

government did a leaflet drop to all its citizens prior to legislation change. I feel something 

similar would need to happen here as there is a strong body of people advocating the law 

should not be changed identifying the tensions between children’s rights and adult’s rights. 

That legislation would set parents against the children and that current legislation is adequate 

regarding protecting children and that there would be an unacceptable intrusion into family 

life. Without a law change I don’t feel much progress would be made in changing attitudes as 

smacking is equated to discipline which is seen as good. Children’s rights need to be on par 

with adult’s rights in terms of protection. 

 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Attitudes of individuals and personal belief systems in respect to parent’s rights to discipline 

children. The Bill may in some instances raise a perceived conflict of interest between 

children’s rights and the principal under the human rights act right to a private life free from 

intervention from the state. 

Professional difficulties when balancing the rights of children and the potential criminalisation 

of parents.  

Potential enforcement issues, and proportionate responses to allegations made could 

potentially overload public services and the criminal justice service.    

Societal change is only achieved with sustained programmes of promotion and support, this 

will have a cost and resource implication for practitioners working with families, particularly 

those working with vulnerable groups. 

Attitudes to change  

Tudalen y pecyn 24



  

Cost implications and limited resources 

Overburden on public bodies 

Diverting services away from crimes deemed more serious 

Damage the trust between public bodies and families 

Duty to report for some agencies. 

Stigmatise and criminalise some parents 

There will be arguments re infringement of parents rights on how to raise their children 

“Nanny State” 

How will this Bill be enforced? 

 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The explanatory memorandum outlines how the Bill has considered the points above, and 

demonstrates how some of these issues may be addressed in order for the Bill to achieve its 

purpose. Whilst the intent of the Bill is not to criminalise parents or prevent, parents from 

taking reasonable steps to act in a physical way to protect a child from immediate harm, or to 

facilitate appropriate behaviour management, more clarity in terms of definition of what is 

considered to be acceptable actions in this area may be needed.   

Clarity needed re definitions interchangeable terms e.g. corporal punishment and physical 

punishment and proposed changes 

Any extra funding that will be required to provide support to parents, guardians in terms of 

parenting groups, leaflets(bilingual) etc. 

 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Practice for many years amongst professionals such as Health Visiting and Early Year’s 

Educators has aimed to discourage physical punishment of children. Programmes such as 

Triple P and The Incredible Years Nurture Programme have routinely been offered to parents 

requesting support, to develop an alternative strategy to physical discipline.  This support is 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



  

currently in the form of universal service provision, universal targeted or early intervention 

programmes.  These resources may experience higher demand once the defence is removed.   

There is also the possibility that parents with most need may take a negative or fearful view 

of such programmes and practitioners may lose the opportunity of universal early 

intervention prevention offered by the current approach. 

There is no clear consensus on the impact on services such as health services, police, CPs, the 

courts children’s services, schools 

Just having this discussion may change attitudes to smacking children attitudes are currently 

changing with there being an even split for a complete ban   

 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

There will need for training, education and guidance aimed at practitioners within Health and 

Education to support them if disclosures of the use of physical punishment are made during 

the course of their work which necessitate a report to the Local Authority Children’s Services 

or Police.  

The Welsh Government state that they plan to build and maintain relationships with 

individuals and organisations to ensure that effected parties understand the changes being 

made. This will need to be robust and ensure that all affected parties are fully aware of their 

roles and responsibilities and how this will affect their duty to report under the Social Services 

and Well-being (Wales) Act, along with the implications for Local Authority Single Points of 

Contact/Common Access Points and potential management of cases brought to them as a 

result of the legislative change. There is a need to ensure a consistent approach to referrals 

made to statutory Services across Wales. This will inevitably come with a financial cost to each 

organisation.  

It is currently incumbent on all statutory agencies to provide safeguarding training in respect 

to children and some of the long term cost will be mitigated if additional training is 

incorporated in to existing packages.    

At present the cost to Local authority as a result of increased referrals is unquantified (as 

outlined in part 2 of the explanatory Memorandum) as such, so is the ongoing cost for 

partner agencies providing support via parenting programmes.    

Support for parents and staff 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



  

Bilingual costs 

Possible overburden of public bodies 

 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

The fact that this is a potentially contentious issue should not prevent this legislation being 

progressed to ensure that children and young people are protected as societal change will 

take a long time to achieve and violence (in any form or at any level) breeds violence

 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



 

  

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 3 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Hywel Dda University Health Board 

 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

The Bill supports the UNCRC. The risk if we condone physical punishment and parents feel it 

is acceptable practice then there is a risk that a smack can escalate to a serious injury for a 

child.  

As stated in the explanatory memorandum, research suggests physical punishment is no 

more effective than non-physical approaches to discipline; therefore, parents need to learn 

other strategies when parenting children. The Bill should support a positive parenting 

approach. 

 

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Yes. Having legislation makes a clear statement to members of the public and professionals. 

Tudalen y pecyn 28

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


 

  

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Removing the defence must not interfere with the principles of the common law, which 

acknowledge that a parent can intervene physically.  An example might be the physical 

intervention necessary to keep a child safe from harm, such as physically stopping a child 

from running into a road (as opposed to any physical intervention intended to punish a child 

for running into a road) or physically restraining a child to keep them from injuring 

themselves or others.  

The Bill is unlikely to achieve the intended outcome in isolation. A significant awareness 

campaign will be required to achieve it's aim. 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The Bill does not address the resource implications to achieve full implementation and public 

awareness. 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



 

  

It is our view that we should be following other countries who have already implemented the 

change. 

The Welsh Government may want to consider following the Scottish model which places a 

duty on Scottish Ministers to promote public awareness and understanding about the effect 

of the Bill. Certain groups and individuals may oppose the change and they need information  

and to be educated that it is not appropriate to physically punish a child 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 4 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

BCUHB is committed to upholding children’s rights under the United Nations Convention on 

the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and safeguarding children. The main aim of the Bill is to help 

protect children’s rights by prohibiting the physical punishment of children by parents and 

those acting in loco parentis. It is clear that the Bill will remove the common law defence of 

reasonable punishment so it is no longer available in Wales, to parents or those acting in loco 

parentis as a defence to assault or battery, against a child. From a health perspective, this 

gives greater clarity regarding legality when providing a safeguarding service to children and 

families. This can only enhance the protection of children. 

This Bill gives greater clarity and links clearly to the changes made in Section 58 of the 

Children Act 2004 although the UK Government review in 2007 suggested the reasonable 

punishment defence it appeared to have minimal use / reference in cases that have reached 

the stage or referral to the CPS or prosecution in court. Of those that were reviewed there 

appeared to be a lack of understanding/inconsistent use of the Charging Standard. This Bill 

will ensure consistency in the amendment of the Charging Standard to make it clear the 

defence no longer applies in Wales. Again, this will ensure fairness and a standardised 

process to all children who are subjected to abuse and in doing so with a human rights 

approach. 

BCUHB agrees with the principles regarding disciplining of children and what is acceptable or 

not. When caring for children it is important to ensure children are allowed to develop in a 

Tudalen y pecyn 31

http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


household with boundaries. This enhances their child development and future transition into 

adulthood. The difference between keeping a child safe and perpetrating abuse on a child are 

stark. For some parents the transition from using physical interventions to using alternative 

behaviours could be a challenge. This would require health visitors/school nurses and other 

health professionals to contribute to early intervention/prevention learning. The Research 

published in 2018, highlighted that 35% of parents accessed advice and information on 

managing children’s behaviour from health professionals. This will subsequently greatly 

increase and must be recognised that this will have an impact on health resources. This 

section could be linked to Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and parents experiencing 

learned behaviour from their parents. 

BCUHB agree that raising awareness of the Bill is key to parents and those acting with 

parental responsibility before there is a change in the law. This will require a multi-agency 

approach and the Regional Safeguarding Children’s Boards will require engagement. 

On reading the section on – Impact of Public Bodies – this only mentions engagement with 

relevant bodies including police/social services. Health are key to this and this needs 

strengthening. The additional legislation will be required to be embedded into safeguarding 

children’s training, relevant information, policies/procedures and guidelines within BCUHB. 

Nationally this will also need to be embedded within the National Protection Procedures.  

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

BCUHB does agree that there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve. It is clearly written and emphasises that this Bill would not create a new criminal 

offence but that the legislation would be that the physical punishment of children by parents 

in Wales would be prohibited. BCUHB agrees with this and it is not acceptable to “do 

nothing”. 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No - but good to have an Implementation Group.  Might be training issues for Health Boards. 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Yes - training seems to have been considered within the Bill. 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

There potentially might be a rise in safeguarding children’s reports to Social Services and 

Police, which will require monitoring. This will have an effect of health resources as the 

safeguarding team support health professionals in the safeguarding process. 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The Bill appears to suggest there will be limited financial implications of the Bill. It discusses 

the provision of Flying Start and Universal Services for Health Visitors and that the current 

provision will be sufficient thus incurring no additional costs by WG. It must be remembered 

that Health Visitor and School Nursing Services are carrying considerable vacancies and thus 

further investment might be required to fulfil the principles of the Bill. In addition, Flying Start 

only provides services to those in certain postcodes so what provision will be provided to 

those outside Flying Start areas. Children subjected to physical punishment are living in all 

families not just those in the lower socio-economic groups. 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

No.

 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 

 

  

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 5 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

Support for the bill includes: 

- A welcome acknowledgment that the bill encourages the use of positive parenting, as 

a more acceptable form of behaviour management. 

- Will supersede current legislation where there can be can difficulties around the 

interpretation of “acceptable conduct” and there could happen a possible risk of 

flouting / evading the current law due.  

- We fully support the UNCHRC and support actions that protect children and young 

people from any forms of violence. This legislation will protect children in the same 

that adults are protected from assault. 

- This legislation will help to protect children from the psychological and long term 

damage to the emotional wellbeing of children. 

- The legislation supports the evidence of the impact of domestic abuse on children in 

relation to Adverse Childhood Experiences WG (2015) 

- The word “injury” used on page 4 of the summary indicates harm at any level  

- The proposed legislation acknowledges that behaviour change is a psychological , 

cognitive , developmental and learning experience for the child which takes time , 

positive support and appropriate techniques by parents  

Tudalen y pecyn 34

http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


 

 

  

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- Yes without legislation again this could be open to interpretation by parents and 

agencies and potential  different thresholds and levels of intervention 

- Same answers as for first question  

- Legislation will definitely improve the safeguarding of children  

- Services that are directly involved in the safeguarding arena have experienced many 

occasions within a safeguarding meeting, where parents and professionals have 

justified their violent actions towards their children with an excuse of the fact that no 

breech of common law has occurred and stated “it is not against the law”. 

- There is evidence that parents who have experienced violence against themselves as 

children from their own parents often consider that it “ did me no harm “ when in fact 

they go on to assaulting their own children. This act demonstrates that indeed harm 

has occurred to themselves as a child because they perpetuate intergenerational 

behaviours of abuse to children. 

- The proposed legislation that it sends a clear message that in our society 21st century 

that we are very far away from historical attitudes and that we value and cherish our 

children as most vital for our future generations. 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Possible Barriers include: 

- Limited resources to enable wider public and professional , governmental , service  

adoption of the new law  

- Ongoing sustained Public campaigns are vital  

- Culturally diverse communities will require sensitive education and support  

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- The Bill could go further to ensure that finance and education is made available for 

parents and organisations to embed  a pledge , policies , procedures of no tolerance of 

violence to children. 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 

 

  

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Possible unintended consequences could include: 

- Reduced self-reporting by parents  

- Increased referrals and prosecutions  

- Increased support for vulnerable groups will be essential to educate and inform 

 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The following financial implication should be considered: 

- Production of National Media Campaign material 

- Preventative work 

- Educational packages 

- Updating training packages 

- Updating Policies/processes 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

What happens if a Welsh child is subject to physical punishment outside of Wales? 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



 

 

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Paper 6 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Cwm Taf Morgannwg Health Board 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

As a Public Service, committed to positive outcomes for children, young people and families, 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board (CTMUHB) believes that the Principles of the 

Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill is  to be supported for 

the following reasons: 

Childrens Rights (UNCHR)  

This Bill provides a clear message that the rights of children and young people are 

recognised, prioritised and that they are given the same constitutional privileges and 

protection as adults in Wales.  This can only be achieved through prohibiting the use of 

physical chastisement as a method of managing children’s behaviour. 

It can be  considered to be an extremely positive Bill as the United Nations Convention of the 

Rights of the Child is central; specifically article 19 (recognition of the right of the child to 

respect their human dignity physical integrity and equal protection under the law ).  

Removing the defence of reasonable punishment will give greater protection to children and 

help safeguard and promote the health, development and well-being of the most vulnerable 

members of our population.    

Attachment parental capacity and adverse childhood experiences (ACES):  

Tudalen y pecyn 37

http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


 

 

The beneficial evidence of positive attachment and positive parenting is well founded and as 

such is a cornerstone to the work of key practitioners in early years services  such as 

Midwives, Therapists, other key professionals including Paediatricians and Specialist 

Community Public Health Nurses (i.e. Health Visitors and School Health Nurses).  

This Bill will therefore support the work of Midwives, Paediatricians and Health Visitors 

particularly; reinforcing to parents that managing their children through the principles of 

positive parenting will develop carer’s confidence in dealing with behaviours in the most 

appropriate, loving way and without resorting to ineffective physical punishment.  

Abusive parenting (which includes physical abuse) is also recognised as an ACE. The impact 

upon children who experience ACES, with stressful childhoods are more likely to develop 

health harming and anti-social behaviours, perform poorly educationally and more likely to 

become involved in criminal activity ( Public Health Wales, 2016) 

The Bill  therefore be an enabler and will be congruent with public health practitioners’ 

professional values around child care and is reflected in the ethos of the Healthy Child Wales 

Programme (HCWP WG 2015)  

Culture:  

There are a number of countries that have outlawed the use of parental physical chastisement 

with Sweden being the first in 1979.  A review of Sweden’s ban on corporal punishment; 

Never Violence: Thirty Years on from Sweden’s abolition of corporal punishment (Government 

Offices, Sweden & Save the Children Sweden, 2009) continues to reinforce the value of such 

legislation, reporting that;  

‘Child rearing without conflict does not exist and there are no perfect parents.  It is about a 

mutually respectful relationship and it is the responsibility of the adult to teach the child how 

to solve conflict without using violence, threats or intimidation.  It is the Governments 

responsibility to create the necessary conditions for non-violent and non-abusive child 

rearing practices, providing parents with the support and help they need to be good role 

models for their children’.  

In Wales, although there is evidence to suggest that attitudes to the use of parental physical 

chastisement have shifted significantly from what was once thought to be acceptable 

practice, it is recognised that some parents may need greater support in understanding and 

developing more positive styles of parenting.  Winning hearts and minds of some parents and 

carers requires a cultural shift regarding parental attitudes and behaviours and this Bill should 

facilitate an acceleration in parental attitude change.    

Management of the Bill:  

Undertaking a universal multi – layered approach to reinforcing existing models of positive 

parenting is critical and should commence with the education of our children and young 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 

 

people through to the ante-natal period when parents are most receptive to receiving health 

promotion messages.  Evidence based positive parenting interventions delivered within the 

early years can be continued to support parents of children of all age groups from the pre-

birth period to managing older children and young people. 

Across Wales media campaigns such as  Parenting: Give It time ( WG 2015) are essential as it 

will equip parents to develop tools to support their parenting in addition to enabling the 

public sector and third sector to enhance this framework and deliver consistent messages 

across Wales.  Whilst prevention programmes are critical the legislation has to deliver clarity 

in terms of its application, a lead organisation such as Public Health Wales, should take the 

steer in driving forward the required changes across Wales. 

 

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Yes, legislation is required to ensure that the physical punishment of children is unacceptable 

and prohibited in Wales. This clear message removes any legal loop holes regarding parental 

physical chastisement of children in Wales, which will be no longer be defensible under the 

legislation. 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

As stated earlier, it may be a challenge for health care practitioners to manage a change of 

attitude with some parents who may still hold the belief that physical 

punishment/chastisement is an acceptable form of behaviour management for their children.  

Cultural norms in some communities and families is therefore likely to be a barrier with 

intergenerational approaches being challenged by the Bill. 

There is a lack of clarity on the following: 

•What constitutes physical chastisement and what would happen when a parent is 

suspected/observed to be physically punishing a child?  

•How is physical chastisement defined?   

•Children are currently protected by the law in terms of abuse, neglect and harm.  How will 

the Bill enhance current legislation?   

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 

 

•Is rough handling physical chastisement and therefore unlawful?  

•Would enforcement be proportionate to the physical chastisement used?  

•Would a member of the public call the police if they witnessed a parent smacking or roughly 

handling a child?   

•What form of action would be taken against the parent and how would this interface with 

current safeguarding children processes?  Would a child protection medical and response be 

required?   

It is suggested that WG consider Sweden’s ‘Children & Parents Code’, this prohibits parents 

from using violence or emotionally abusive treatment when bringing up a child, but does not 

prevent parents from restraining their children to prevent harm to themselves or others.  The 

Code does not in itself carry penalties, but actions that meet the legal criteria of assault are 

embedded within a penal code. 

 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

2.21 Reinforcement 

No.  The Bill does not adequately reflect the impact and consequence of the legislation on 

parents, public services or communities.   

There needs to be greater clarity with regard to enforcements and processes that will aid 

/support the same 

2.2.2 Action  

The focus however should be about reinforcing positive parenting which incorporates 

alternatives to physical chastisement to managing a child’ s negative/ challenging behaviour 

and understanding normal child development and the best strategies to use. If the approach 

taken is to prioritise the education of parents and carers about the short and long term 

benefits of using alternatives to physical chastisement rather than consequences of breaching 

the Bill, it is hoped that there is a clearer appreciation and acceptance of the Bill 

2.2.3 Safeguarding 

The law currently protects children from abuse and harm.  Where a child has received physical 

injury, been subject to neglect and other kinds of abuse, the safeguarding and criminal 

processes are already clear.  There may be difficulty under the Bill of substantiating physical 

harm such as smacking, which may not leave any ‘evidence’, however it is surmised that the 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

 

intention of the Bill is not to criminalise parents in practice but to educate them to more 

effective methods of disciplining children.   

The Police, the Crown Prosecution Service and Social Services already receive and investigate 

reports of children being physically punished and use their standard procedures to determine 

on a case by case basis how best to proceed.  The detail of how cases of physical 

chastisement will be managed within current child protection requires further clarity, 

exploration and planning. It would be expected that that direction around practical 

application of the Bill is led by an organisation such as the National Independent 

Safeguarding Board.   

 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Giving children the same rights as adults in terms of protection from physical violence can 

only have a positive effect on their well-being in the short and long term.   

It is anticipated that there will be financial and resource implications for public services of 

implementing and supporting the premise of the bill; depending on clarity around 

enforcement. For the early year’s workforce it may impact upon relationships with families 

/parents and carers at least initially if they need to report/refer a family. However as cultural 

norms and expectations change and improve this is anticipated to be less of an issue. 

 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

As indicated above, the effect of the new Bill will result in increased public service activity 

from statutory services such as Police, Health, Children’s Services and the judicial system.  

From a Health and Social Care perspective more extensive intervention may be required to 

support positive parenting programmes with families experiencing difficulties in managing 

children and young people.  Greater resources may be required to reflect the increase in state 

intervention, action and enforcement in response to the operation of the Bill; in prevention 

activities of those working with families and of restoration work with families affected by 

breaking the law. 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 

 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

In summary, the principles of the Bill are fundamentally supported and will be a very positive 

enabler for those front line practitioners who are challenged with delivering messages and 

supporting positive parenting practices that are not currently enforceable.  

The Bill aligns with existing frameworks and parenting programmes and marries with the 

evidence of better outcomes for children that experience positive ACE free childhoods 

The implementation of the Bill will need a carefully managed and executed communications 

programme of work supported by a training programme for key workforce groups.   

As with all Public Health focused messages and interventions it is critical that single 

consistent messages are articulated to ensure there is clear understanding of the rationale for 

the change, the positive impact and consequences and robust effective delivery 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 7 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence 

of Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl 

Ifanc ac Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 

1 (Saesneg yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, 

Young People and Education 

Committee for Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: National Independent Safeguarding Board 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

Children in Wales should have the same rights and protections in law as adults in 

Wales.  Removing the defence of reasonable punishment is an important step in 

upholding their rights. 

Restrictions on the use of this defence are already in place so removing it completely 

eliminates any ambiguity about when it is acceptable to use physical punishment on 

children and when it is not. 

Research does not support any link between physical punishment and improved 

behaviour in children and it is out of step with the ethos of promoting positive 

parenting styles in Wales. 

  Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is 

trying to achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Their is the need for legislation to support the principles the Bill is trying to deliver.   

Tudalen y pecyn 43

Eitem 3

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


Evidence from other countries that have introduced similar legislation has shown that 

there is a link between such legislation and the changing attitudes of parents and 

wider society particularly when it is in conjunction with sustained information 

campaigns and support to parents. 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing 

the Bill? If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from 

the Bill? If no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set 

out in Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

No 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 

  

 

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 8  

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (RCPCH) 

 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

The UN Convention on the Rights of the Child includes protecting children from violence. It is 

unacceptable for children to be physically assaulted in any context. Historically, corporal 

punishment was tolerated but this is no longer acceptable in today’s society.   

We note the NSPCC’s Review of the Evidence on the Physical Punishment of Children report 

(based on work carried out by researchers at the Department of Epidemiology and Public 

Health at University College London) and its key findings that: 

•physical punishment is in decline in many countries, including the UK 

•physical punishment is associated with increased childhood aggression and antisocial 

behaviour 

•experiencing physical punishment is related to depressive symptoms and anxiety among 

children 

•physical punishment carries a serious risk of escalation into abuse  

https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/research-resources/2015/equally-protected/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 45

Eitem 4

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
https://learning.nspcc.org.uk/research-resources/2015/equally-protected/


 

  

The RCPCH has been concerned that the four UK Nations have been slow to heed the calls of 

the UN Committee on the Rights of the Child and follow the example of 50 other countries 

that have banned the physical punishment of children outright. We are pleased that Wales 

and Scotland are now leading the way on this issue.  

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Paediatricians continue in practice to encounter parents/carers who are unaware of the 

evidence relating to the use of physical punishment. In preparing this response, one RCPCH 

member told us that: 

“parents openly admit within a clinic setting to physical chastisement stating that their child 

‘needs to learn how to survive in this world' and 'know how to toughen up’. Others will admit 

to hitting but would never hit hard enough to leave a mark, not knowing the emotional and 

psychological harm that this form of chastisement, irrespective of physical harm, does to a 

child.” (RCPCH member in Wales, May 2019). 

Legislation can be a key driver of the kind of cultural or attitude change we need to see 

regarding the physical punishment of children. The wearing of seatbelts and changed 

attitudes and behaviour since the introduction of legislation to ban smoking in public places 

are good examples. 

Paediatricians also report encounters with professionals using ‘rule of thumb’ judgements in 

the past as to what level of physical punishment of children might be justifiable and what 

should be escalated. 

Having a legal framework which categorically states that assaulting a child can be ‘justifiable’ 

is hampering those who work with children and families from delivering clear, evidence-based 

advice. The proposed legislative change could therefore support parents, carers and 

guardians as well as professionals working with children or in child protection services by 

removing this ambiguity, providing consistency and clarity both to professionals and to 

parents and giving children the best possible protection. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

  

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

We are not aware of significant barriers to the implementation of the Bill, but there will of 

course need to be work done to ensure that the proposed changes are properly 

communicated and existing systems adapted to reflect and implement the legislation.  

For example, health care professionals have mandatory training in Child Protection Level 1. 

Those who are in contact with children are trained to Level 2 or 3 (Safeguarding Children and 

Young People: Roles and Competencies for Health Care Staff. Intercollegiate document; 

RCPCH, March 2014 - https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/safeguarding-children-young-people-

roles-competencies-healthcare-staff). It may be appropriate to consider including information 

about the updated legislation as part of the essential child protection training that is required 

to meet the core competencies (which were updated recently: 

https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/007-366).  

In Wales, competency in child protection is part of the appraisal and revalidation system. 

Health Education and Improvement Wales (HEIW) may need to consider how this system 

responds to the change in legislation.  

We understand that the All Wales Protection Procedures (for children and adults) will soon 

replace the 2008 Child Protection Procedures. The frameworks and resources used by 

paediatricians and other professionals involved in child protection are regularly updated to 

reflect the most recent evidence, legislation and policy. We envisage that this would be part 

of these processes.  

It is important that a campaign of information and support for parents/carers takes place to 

support the implementation of equal legal protection. Again, we believe that this should not 

be seen as a barrier but as an opportunity to better support parents. We are encouraged that 

the Welsh Government is already considering how to do this and note the Parenting: Give It 

Time campaign and resources ( https://giveittime.gov.wales/?lang=en)  

Support and information for parents should be built into the Welsh Government’s early years 

programmes and policies. The RCPCH State of Child Health Recommendations for Wales we 

published in 2017 included a recommendation that: 

“The Healthy Child Wales Programme should ensure local authorities and health boards 

prioritise children’s safety, and through utilising resources such as health visitors and home 

safety equipment schemes, educate and equip parents and carers to keep their children safe” 

Clearly, this represents an opportunity to improve children’s safety.  

Tudalen y pecyn 47

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/safeguarding-children-young-people-roles-competencies-healthcare-staff
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/safeguarding-children-young-people-roles-competencies-healthcare-staff
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/007-366
https://giveittime.gov.wales/?lang=en


 

  

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 

  

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 9 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Royal College of General Practitioners 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

Several hundred studies over decades have explored the links between parental physical 

punishment and child outcomes. Establishing causal links when randomised controlled trials 

are not 

ethically feasible is a challenge. Longitudinal studies are limited by an inability to control all 

confounding variables, and so cannot categorically establish causal relationships. Most of the 

evidence to assess the link between physical punishment and child outcomes comes from 

correlational studies, many of which have been collected into meta‐analyses. These often 

come to different and sometimes opposite conclusions. Despite these challenges, the 

potential risk to children’s development was found in virtually all studies including when 

controlled for potential confounders. 

Examples include: 

•Impaired relationship with parents. 

•Impaired child mental health. 

•Impaired adult mental health. 

•Increased risk of moral internalisation. 

Tudalen y pecyn 49

http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.cynulliad.cymru/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


 

  

•Increased incidence of child aggression. 

•Increased risk of being physically bullied. 

•Increased delinquent or antisocial behaviour, reduced ability to manage situations verbally. 

•Increased incidence of adult crime. 

•Increased risk of abusing own child or spouse. 

Overall, the balance of evidence supports the following conclusions: 

•There is strong evidence that severe physical punishment and child abuse are harmful to 

child development. 

•There is evidence that the way and conditions in which physical punishment is typically used 

by parents is correlated with a broad and enduring range of negative outcomes for children. 

•No replicated peer‐reviewed research has shown that parental physical punishment has 

positive effects on long‐term developmental outcomes. 

•Physical punishment is only effective in achieving immediate compliance in limited 

conditions and the same outcome can be achieved using isolation. 

•The incidence of using physical punishment is higher in homes where domestic violence is 

also occurring. 

Despite a wealth of evidence to suggest a correlation between parental physical punishment 

and negative outcomes for children, it is only possible to conclude that there is a correlation, 

not necessarily a causal link, between parental physical punishment and an increase in 

childhood problem behaviour and other outcomes. Supporters of a ban on physical 

punishment argue that replications of these correlations are enough to draw the conclusion 

that parental physical punishment is linked to childhood problem behaviour and that this 

evidence of the risk of harm is enough to support a ban. 

The balance of evidence seems sufficiently clear and compelling to inform us that parental 

use of physical punishment of children plays no useful role in their upbringing and poses only 

risks to their development. With this is mind, parents should be encouraged to develop 

alternative positive approaches to discipline. 

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



 

  

It is the College’s view that there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve. 

There are signs in the UK that the prevalence of physical punishment is decreasing and that 

public attitudes are changing, but there continues to be a diverse range of public attitudes 

and many people hold polarised, strongly held views. 

Parents from both sides of the debate want to raise children who are secure, loving and 

confident, with a clear internal moral compass. The debate about parental physical 

punishment is often driven, at least in part, by value judgments about how children should or 

should not be raised, rather than by empirical evidence. It can be difficult to disentangle 

robust science from well‐intentioned advocacy efforts. 

Children’s attitudes towards parental physical punishment vary but are generally negative. 

Younger children and those who have experienced physical punishment are more likely to 

support its use. Nonetheless, children view physical punishment as the most severe type of 

discipline and report that it hurts them both physically and emotionally. Some children 

associate it with angry parents who later regret their actions. Some describe feeling scared, 

sad and unloved and say that it negatively affected their relationship with their parents. Some 

children think that parental physical punishment encourages children to use physical violence 

and suggest that restricting privilege is a more effective form of discipline, being longer 

lasting, causing more inconvenience and giving the opportunity to reflect on their actions. 

The available evidence suggests that children believe that discipline and punishment, when 

explained and administered fairly, can play an important role in a child’s healthy 

development. 

There are concerns that parental physical punishment is linked to childhood behaviour 

problems through modelling and legitimising aggression and violence. Several psychological 

theories predict physical punishment will make children’s behaviour worse not better. Social 

learning theory (Bandura 1977) suggests that smacking can teach children that aggressive 

action achieves a desired outcome and so they imitate their parents by acting aggressively 

with their peers. 

Attribution theory (Grolnick, Deci, Ryan 1997) states that physical punishment will interfere 

with children’s internalisation of moral reasons not to act in an aggressive or self-interested 

way. Attachment Theory (Bowlby 1980) suggests that parental use of physical punishment 

negatively affects the parent‐child relationship and therefore decreases the child’s willingness 

to internalise parents’ values. 

Parental physical punishment is a violation of children’s rights according to the UN 

convention ratified by the UK. The UNCRC and the European Court of Human Rights have 

criticised the UK for not enforcing children’s rights to be protected from all forms of physical 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 

  

or mental violence. Specifically, it opposes the defence of ‘reasonable punishment’ pointing 

to the imprecise nature of this expression, saying that this undermines the law’s ability to 

protect the rights of children. In contrast to the UK, 29 European states have prohibited the 

use of physical punishment in all settings and others have expressed a commitment to 

enacting full prohibition.  

Some researchers conceptualise physical punishment and physical abuse along a continuum 

and do not think it is possible to distinguish ‘non‐abusive’ physical punishment from physical 

abuse. Some studies suggest that physical punishment is linked to child abuse. It is relevant 

to note that most child physical abuse occurs in the context of ‘punishment.’ 

It is a concern that when smacking fails, parents who rely on this method of discipline tend to 

intensify its use rather than change strategies. 85% parents express moderate to high levels of 

anger when smacking their children. 

In place of physical punishment, professionals should promote positive, supportive and loving 

parental relationships with positive reinforcement to increase desired behaviour. Parents 

should be clear about what bad behaviour constitutes and what the consequences of it will 

be and why. They should deliver instructions calmly and with empathy and use consistency 

with strategies such as Time Out and removal of privileges for punishment. It is important to 

also note that verbal reprimands, where appropriate, should be directed towards the 

behaviour and not the child’s character. 

There is a well organised campaign for those opposed to the smacking ban. This group is 

concerned that good parents will be turned into criminals, but evidence from countries who 

have this ban in place does not suggest this should be a concern. Advocates of physical 

punishment suggest that criminal and anti-social behaviour is caused by a lack of discipline. 

They believe that physical punishment may be used to control the short‐term behaviour of 

the child and to reinforce the authority of the parent. However, there is no evidence to 

suggest physical punishment is more effective than other methods of discipline. 

The emerging consensus of professionals is that parents should be supported in learning 

non‐violent, effective approaches to discipline. Children need the same protection in law that 

adults enjoy. 

It is important to recognise that a society which wants to achieve no physical punishment of 

children needs to provide adequate support for parents. We must ask how what would be 

considered assault towards an adult, can be acceptable to a much smaller, more vulnerable 

human who is defenceless and reliant on their parent to teach right from wrong. The change 

in the law would send a clear message that physical violence towards children is wrong on 

any level. This will help to change attitudes over time and may help to stop parents smacking 

their children in anger, in the knowledge that this is a hard line that must not be crossed. 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



 

  

 

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

- 

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

- 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 

  

CYPE(5)-16-19 – Papur 10 

Consultation on the Children (Abolition of Defence of 

Reasonable Punishment) (Wales) Bill 

Tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac 

Addysg ar gyfer craffu Cyfnod 1 (Saesneg 

yn unig) 

Evidence submitted to the Children, Young 

People and Education Committee for 

Stage 1 scrutiny 

 

Organisation: Royal College of Nursing Wales 

1 The Bill’s general principles 

 Do you support the principles of the Children (Abolition of Defence of Reasonable 

Punishment) (Wales) Bill? 

Yes 

 Please outline your reasons for your answer to question 1.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

The traditional defence of ‘reasonable punishment’ works against the aims which we and any 

modern Government should share: the encouragement of positive parental discipline in all 

families, and assurance of effective child protection in the few cases where it is needed. The 

existence of the ‘reasonable punishment’ defence is an out-dated legal anomaly, and it is 

right that children and young people should have the same protection from corporal 

punishment as adults do.  

Clarity in the law will also help Registered Nurses such as Health Visitors, School Nurses and 

Children’s Community Nurses to give clear advice to parents. It would eliminate the current 

potential for confusion over what is acceptable and provide a clear basis for child protection. 

The UN’s Committee on the Rights of the Child has called on the UK to remove the 

reasonable punishment defence on several occasions, and RCN Wales welcomes Welsh 

Government leading the way in the UK in implementing this. 

 Do you think there is a need for legislation to deliver what this Bill is trying to 

achieve? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

Yes 

Tudalen y pecyn 54

http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=443


 

  

2 The Bill’s implementation 

 Do you have any comments about any potential barriers to  implementing the Bill? 

If no, go to question 3.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

The Royal College of Nursing Wales is not aware of any barriers to implementing the Bill. It is 

important however that nurses and health professionals working with children, young people 

and their families are supported with the appropriate information and education 

opportunities to enable them to be confident in delivering clear and consistent messaging.  

Guidance on what health professionals should do if they witness a child being subjected to 

physical punishment should be issued. Information and guidance should also be made 

available for Health Visitors, School Nurses and other professionals to share with parents, 

carers and guardians in order to help educate and raise awareness amongst the public. 

This work should be part of a wider, longer-term piece of work focussed on celebrating 

children’s rights, including the right not to be punished with physical force. 

 Do you think the Bill takes account of these potential barriers? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

N/A – there are no perceived barriers to implementation. 

3 Unintended consequences 

 Do you think there are there any unintended consequences arising from the Bill? If 

no, go to question 4.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

4 Financial implications 

 Do you have any comments on the financial implications of the Bill (as set out in 

Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)? If no, go to question 5.1 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 500 words) 

No 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



 

  

5 Other considerations 

 Do you have any other points you wish to raise about this Bill? 

(we would be grateful if you could keep your answer to around 1000 words) 

- 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



14 Mai 2019 

Y wybodaeth diweddaraf gan Lywodraeth Cymru am Raglen addysg ac ysgolion yr 
21ain ganrif 

Annwyl Lynne, 

Trafododd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus raglen addysg ac ysgolion yr 21ain 
ganrif, yn 2018 yn dilyn adroddiad gan yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol. Cawsom y 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf, sydd ynghlwm, gan Lywodraeth Cymru am gynnydd 
Bandiau A a B y Rhaglen, a'r cynnydd a wnaed yn erbyn Argymhellion yr 
Archwilydd Cyffredinol.  

Cytunodd y Pwyllgor y byddwn yn ysgrifennu atoch fel Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, 
Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg, i weld a fyddech yn fodlon ymchwilio i gynnydd rhaglen 
Band B yn ystod sesiwn Graffu ar y Gweinidog. Rwyf hefyd yn ysgrifennu at 
Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid ynghylch y Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol. 

Yn gywir, 

Nick Ramsay AM 
Cadeirydd 

Lynne Neagle AC 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Tŷ Hywel  
Bae Caerdydd 
CF99 1NA 

CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur i'w nodi 1

Tudalen y pecyn 57

Eitem 5.1



 

 
1 

Tracey Burke 
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol / Director General 
 
Y Grŵp Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 
Education and Public Services Group 
 
 
 

28 Chwefror 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annwyl Mr Ramsay,  
 
Rhaglen Addysg ac Ysgolion ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif 

 
Yn eich llythyr yn ddyddiedig 24 Gorffennaf 2018, roeddech yn gofyn am 
ddiweddariad pellach ym mis Ionawr 2019 ar Fand B y Rhaglen Addysg ac Ysgolion 
ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif, gan gynnwys y materion a godwyd gennych yn eich llythyr ac 
argymhellion yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol. Gofynnoch am ddiweddariad ar sefyllfa Band 
A yn ogystal.  
 
Rwyf wedi llunio’r papur atodedig gan obeithio y bydd yn ddefnyddiol i’r Pwyllgor. 
 
Rhowch wybod os hoffech gael rhagor o wybodaeth neu eglurhad pellach.  
 
 
Yn gywir 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Tracey Burke 
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol, Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 
 
 

 

 

Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 
Caerdydd ● Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  

 

Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 0258047 

tracey.burke@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● website: 

www.wales.gov.uk 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni 

fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and 

corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. 

YMATEB YSGRIFENEDIG I’R PWYLLGOR CYFRIFON CYHOEDDUS 

Tudalen y pecyn 58

mailto:tracey.burke@gov.wales
http://www.wales.gov.uk/


 

 
2 

 
RHAGLEN ADDYSG AC YSGOLION AR GYFER YR 21AIN GANRIF 
 
 
Rhagarweiniad 
 
Fel y gofynnwyd yn y llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus ar 24 
Gorffennaf 2018, mae’r papur hwn yn rhoi diweddariad pellach yn dilyn fy llythyr 
dyddiedig 21 Awst. Mae’n cwmpasu Band B y Rhaglen Addysg ac Ysgolion ar gyfer 
yr 21ain Ganrif, gan gynnwys y y materion a godwyd yn eich llythyr. Mae hefyd yn 
rhoi diweddariad ar argymhellion yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol. 
 
 
1. Diweddariad ar y Rhaglen   

 
Band A  

 
Daw Band A y Rhaglen i ben yn swyddogol ym mis Mawrth 2019, wedi i dros £1.4 
biliwn gael ei fuddsoddi yn yr ystâd addysg ar draws Cymru ers 2014. Erbyn mis 
Rhagfyr 2018, bydd Band A wedi cefnogi 170 o brosiectau ailadeiladu neu 
adnewyddu mewn ysgolion neu golegau. Hyd yn hyn, mae 134 o’r rhain wedi’u 
cwblhau ac mae 27 pellach ar y gweill. Rydym yn gweithio gyda’n partneriaid 
cyflenwi ar bum prosiect pellach rydym yn gobeithio eu cefnogi o hyd o dan ymbarél 
Band A.   
 
Ceir yn Atodiad A ddadansoddiad o’r cynnydd a wnaed ym Mand A yn ôl y 
partneriaid cyflawni. Fel arfer, defnyddir Achosion Cyfiawnhad Busnes ar gyfer 
prosiectau bach sy’n werth llai na chyfanswm o £5 miliwn. Mae’r wybodaeth ar fformat 
gwahanol i’r hyn a gyflwynwyd o’r blaen. Cafodd y tablau a roddwyd yn fy mhapur ym mis 
Mehefin 2018 eu cyflwyno mewn ffordd unigryw yn benodol at ddibenion y Pwyllgor 
hwnnw. Y tabl yn Atodiad A yw’r hyn y byddwn yn ei roi’n arferol bob mis i’r Panel 
Buddsoddi a chaiff ei ddiweddaru’n rheolaidd a’i wirio. Mae’n dangos bod Band A bron 
iawn â’i gwblhau. Mae llawer o resymau pam nad yw prosiectau’n cael eu cwblhau neu 
pam y mae oedi’n eu cylch. Yn yr un modd, mae cyfleoedd am brosiectau ychwanegol neu 
brosiectau y mae angen amdanynt ar frys yn ymddangos yn aml ac mae angen cymorth 
arnynt ar fyr rybudd. Yr hyblygrwydd hwn sy’n galluogi i’r rhaglen gyflawni fel y gwnaeth 
hyd yma. 
 
Band B  
 
Mae Band B y Rhaglen yn dechrau’n swyddogol ym mis Ebrill a chaiff £2.3 biliwn 
pellach ei fuddsoddi. Fodd bynnag, rydym eisoes yn gweithio gyda’n partneriaid 
cyflenwi i roi hwb i brosiectau Band B. O dan Band B, rydym wedi derbyn 21 o 
achosion busnes hyd yn hyn, ac mae pedwar o’r rhain yn rhai Addysg Bellach (AB).  
 
Mae chwech o achosion busnes, sy’n werth £45.8 miliwn gyda’i gilydd, eisoes wedi’u 
cymeradwyo’n llawn ac yn y cyfnod adeiladu. 

 Sir Gaerfyrddin – Ysgol Pum Heol 

 Sir Gaerfyrddin – Ysgol Pembrey 

 Conwy – Ysgol Gogarth 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



 

 
3 

 Sir y Fflint – Ysgol Uwchradd Cei Connah 

 Abertawe – Uned EOTAS 

 Coleg Cambria – Canolfan Dechnoleg Iâl 
 
Mae dau achos busnes arall, sydd â gwerth cyfalaf o £32.4 miliwn gyda’i gilydd,  
hefyd wedi’u cymeradwyo’n ddiweddar gan y Panel Buddsoddi ond nid ydynt wedi 
cael cymeradwyaeth y Gweinidog eto. 
 
Bydd Band B yn adeiladu ar gryfderau’r Band blaenorol: 

 Bydd perchnogaeth a llywodraethu’n parhau mewn partneriaeth rhwng 
Llywodraeth Cymru, Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru, Colegau Cymru a 
Chyfarwyddwyr Addysg Esgobaethol; 

 Parheir i flaenoriaeth a chyflymder y gwaith cyflenwi gael ei osod gan ein 
partneriaid cyflenwi yn seiliedig ar flaenoriaethau ac anghenion lleol; a 

 Datblygir a phrofir achosion busnes ar gyfer buddsoddi gan ddefnyddio Model 
5-Achos y Trysorlys.   

 
Fodd bynnag, rydym hefyd wedi ceisio cryfhau gwaith cyflenwi’r rhaglen yn seiliedig 
ar yr hyn a ddysgwyd yn ystod gwaith cyflenwi Band A. Felly bydd gwaith cyflenwi 
Band B yn elwa o: 

 Dempledi achosion busnes symlach, i leihau dyblygu ymdrechion diangen; 

 Aelodaeth ehangach o Grŵp Craffu ar Achosion Busnes Llywodraeth Cymru, i 
sicrhau buddion a chanlyniadau traws-bolisi; a   

 Meincnodi meintiau a chostau safonol, i sicrhau gall cynifer o ddysgwyr â 
phosib elwa o amgylchedd dysgu 21ain Ganrif.  

 
Er mwyn lleddfu’r pwysau ar gyllidebau ein partneriaid cyflenwi, tra hefyd yn cadw 
ein huchelgais uchel ar gyfer y Rhaglen, bydd elfen gyfalaf Band B hefyd yn elwa o 
gyfraddau uwch o ymyrraeth gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Gweithredir y cynnydd hwn i 
roi cymorth ariannol ychwanegol i awdurdodau lleol a cholegau i sicrhau dichonoldeb 
ariannol parhaus y Rhaglen: 

 Cynnydd o 50% i 65% ar gyfer pob prosiect ysgol a choleg prif ffrwd a ariennir 
gan gyfalaf; a 

 Chynnydd o 50% i 75% ar gyfer ysgolion arbennig ac Unedau Cyfeirio 
Disgyblion (PRU). 

 
 
Gyda’n partneriaid cyflenwi rydym hefyd yn bwriadu ailosod natur strategol y 
Rhaglen cyn i Fand B gychwyn ynghyd ag uchelgais newydd a fydd yn ceisio 
darparu: 

 Cenhedlaeth newydd o ysgolion a cholegau sy’n ganolfannau dysgu ar gyfer 
eu cymunedau ehangach; a  

 Rhagor o hybiau ar gyfer gwasanaethau cymunedol, gan gynnig nid addysg 
yn unig ond amrywiaeth ehangach o weithgareddau cymunedol trwy 
gynllunio gwell a chysylltu cyllidebau seilwaith.  

 
Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol (MIM) 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 

 
4 

Ym mis Awst, ysgrifennais at y Pwyllgor mewn ymateb i’w gais am sicrwydd bod y 
Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol yn rhoi’r  gwerth gorau am arian yn gyffredinol. Ers 
hynny, profwyd cynnydd sylweddol o ran datblygu Rhaglen Addysg y Model 
Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol. Cynhaliwyd amserlen ddwys o sesiynau briffio gyda Phrif 
Weithredwyr awdurdodau lleol, swyddogion Adran 151 a Chyfarwyddwyr Addysg.  
Hefyd rhoddwyd cyflwyniadau i Gymdeithas Trysoryddion Cymru, Cymdeithas 
Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru; yn ogystal â thrafodaethau manwl â noddwyr posib ar 
gyfer prosiectau MIM yn yr awdurdodau lleol a cholegau.    
 
Daeth y cyfnod ymgysylltu i ben trwy ddiwrnod gwybodaeth a gynhaliwyd ar 6 
Tachwedd yn y Gyfnewidfa Lo yng Nghaerdydd. Mynychodd 130 o gynrychiolwyr y 
digwyddiad hwn i glywed am gynllun Caffael Partneru Strategol Rhaglen Addysg 
MIM  a Phartneriaeth Addysg Cymru (WEP). Ymhlith y mynychwyr ar y diwrnod 
roedd carfan fawr o gontractwyr, arianwyr a chynghorwyr sector preifat, yn ogystal â 
chynrychiolwyr yr awdurdodau lleol a cholegau. Daeth sawl un o’r olaf o’r ddau 
ymlaen i gyflwyno eu prosiectau MIM. Dangosodd y diwrnod y diddordeb sylweddol 
yn y cynllun caffael Addysg MIM; a’r hyder y mae partneriaid preifat posib yn ei 
feddu arno o ran gallu cyflenwi’r Rhaglen. 
 
Yn ogystal ag ymgysylltu dwys â rhanddeiliaid, mae Tîm Addysg MIM wedi llunio set 
gynhwysfawr o ddogfennaeth, gan gynnwys templed Cytundeb Prosiect Addysg 
MIM, Mecanwaith Talu, y Cytundeb Partneru Strategol a’r Cytundebau cysylltiedig i 
Randdeiliaid. Lanlwythwyd y dogfennau hyn i wefan Llywodraeth Cymru ar 30 
Tachwedd i hel adborth gan yr holl bartïon â diddordeb. Lanlwythwyd dogfennau 
pellach i’r wefan ar 20 Rhagfyr, gan gynnwys Gofynion Technegol a phapurau 
strategol yr Awdurdod ar Ynni, Buddion i’r Gymuned a Modelu Gwybodaeth Busnes 
(BIM).  
 
Hefyd cynhaliwyd ymgysylltu pellach gyda’r Cynulliad ei hun. Rhoddodd swyddogion 
Trysorlys Cymru sesiynau briffio technegol ar y MIM i Bwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith 
a Sgiliau (EIS) ar 3 Hydref ac i’r Pwyllgor Cyllid ar 29 Tachwedd. Cymeradwywyd y 
sesiynau briffio hyn a lle y ceir galw am sesiynau briffio technegol pellach bydd 
swyddogion Trysorlys Cymru a swyddogion Addysg yn cydweithio i sicrhau y caiff 
deunydd ei ddarparu.  
 
Ar ôl ystyried yn ofalus, a chan gymryd i ystyriaeth y cynnydd i’r gyfradd ymyrraeth o 
ran cyfalaf, argymhellwyd y dylid cynyddu cyfraniad Llywodraeth Cymru tuag at 
gynlluniau MIM. O ganlyniad, cafodd yr awdurdodau lleol a sefydliadau addysg 
bellach wybod ar 7 Chwefror bod y gyfradd ymyrraeth ar gyfer cynlluniau MIM wedi 
cynyddu o 75% i 81%, sy’n ymgodiad tebyg i’r hyn a gymhwyswyd i ochr gyfalaf y 
Rhaglen. Gofynnwyd i’r awdurdodau lleol a’r sefydliadau addysg bellach ailystyried a 
oeddent yn dymuno cyfnewid unrhyw un o’u cynlluniau cyfalaf ar gyfer y llwybr MIM. 
 
 
2. Meysydd eraill lle gwnaeth y Pwyllgor ofyn am sicrwydd pellach   
 

Roedd eich llythyr dyddiedig 24 Gorffennaf yn gofyn am sicrwydd mewn chwe maes 
– ethos cydweithrediadol, galw am leoedd, perfformiad ynni, cymorth technegol, 
buddion i’r gymuned a theithio llesol. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



 

 
5 

Ethos cydweithrediadol - lle cafwyd anghysondeb rhwng tystiolaeth CLlLC a 
thystiolaeth Llywodraeth Cymru. Byddai’n dymuno gweld bod y cydweithio a’r 
gydberchnogaeth yn parhau ym Mand B. 
 
Ym mis Awst, soniais fod y trefniadau cydweithio rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a CLlLC 
ac awdurdodau lleol yn enghraifft lwyddiannus o gyd-greu a pherthynas ganolog-
lleol. 

 
Mae’r Rhaglen yn parhau i fod yn seiliedig ar gydweithrediad rhwng Llywodraeth 
Cymru, Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru, Colegau Cymru a Chyfarwyddwyr 
Addysg Esgobaethol, y maent oll wedi’u cynrychioli ar Fwrdd y Rhaglen. Enghraifft 
dda ddiweddar o hyn yw penderfyniad y Gweinidog ym mis Tachwedd i gynyddu 
cyfraddau ymyrraeth Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer elfen gyfalaf y Rhaglen a 
wnaethpwyd yn dilyn trafodaethau helaeth gyda’n partneriaid busnes ac ar gyngor 
gan Fwrdd y Rhaglen. 
 
 
Galw am leoedd - nid oeddem yn argyhoeddedig o ran yr ymatebion a 
dderbyniwyd ynghylch hyblygrwydd y rhaglen i addasu i newidiadau yn y 
gyfradd genedigaethau. Yn benodol, roeddem yn dymuno gwybod a oedd y 
rhaglen yn ffactora datrysiadau technegol i wead ysgolion sy’n golygu y 
gallant adeiladu ar hyblygrwydd - er enghraifft, agor neu gau ystafelloedd 
dosbarth neu greu pwrpas newydd iddynt - wrth i’r ddemograffeg newid. 
 
Ym mis Awst, cynghorais fod awdurdodau lleol yn addasu’r ffurfweddiad ac yn 
defnyddio technegau dylunio amrywiol wrth i’r ddemograffeg newid. Mae 
awdurdodau lleol yn parhau i ddefnyddio amrywiaeth o ddatrysiadau technegol i 
adeiladu hyblygrwydd er mwyn rheoli newidiadau i’r galw am leoedd mewn ysgolion. 
Enghraifft dda ddiweddar o hyn yw dwy ysgol gyfrwng Cymraeg Band B i’w 
hadeiladu yn Abertawe cyn hir. Mae’r rhain yn cael eu ‘diogelu at y dyfodol’ yn 
nhermau eu meysydd cymunol er mwyn gallu ehangu’r ysgolion yn hawdd yn achos 
capasiti derbyn uwch trwy ychwanegu ystafelloedd dosbarth ychwanegol pe bai 
cynnydd yn y galw am leoedd dros amser.  
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 

 
6 

Perfformiad ynni – nid oeddem yn argyhoeddedig fod Llywodraeth Cymru’n 
deall y pryderon ynghylch arbedion effeithlonrwydd ynni. Yn ôl eich tystiolaeth 
nodwyd eich bod yn dda o ran nodi’r arbedion o flaen llaw ond nid yw’r 
arbedion hynny’n arwain at yr arbedion cost a ddisgwylir. Credwn fod mater 
ehangach o ran realaeth yr arbedion posib trwy effeithlonrwydd ynni y mae 
angen ei ffactora i mewn i gynlluniau o flaen llaw. Hoffem weld Llywodraeth 
Cymru’n cymryd rôl flaenllaw mewn herio’r diwydiant os nad yw manyleb y 
diwydiant mewn gwirionedd yn cyflenwi’r buddion ariannol ac amgylcheddol 
yr hoffech eu gweld. Mae CLlLC wedi awgrymu y byddai contractau MIM yn 
ceisio trosglwyddo risgiau sy’n gysylltiedig ag effeithlonrwydd ynni yn 
nyluniad adeiladau i’r sector preifat a byddem hefyd yn croesawu eglurhad o 
ran sut mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n disgwyl i’r trosglwyddo risg weithio.  
 
Ym mis Awst, soniais ein bod wedi comisiynu adroddiad ar sut i osgoi’r bwlch mewn 
perfformiad, a bod y Canllaw Arfer Da a ddeilliodd ohono wedi’i rannu â phartneriaid 
cyflawni a rhanddeiliaid. Mae’r mater o effeithlonrwydd ynni’n parhau’n ystyriaeth 
ddifrifol yn y Rhaglen. Fodd bynnag, er ein bod yn cydnabod bod pryderon bod 
arbedion ar gyfer ysgolion newydd wedi bod yn is na’r disgwyl, nid oes gennym 
dystiolaeth ddigonol hyd yma i allu asesu ai dyma’r achos.  
 
Nawr bod yr arolwg gwerthuso adeiladau a ddefnyddir wedi’i ddosbarthu i’n 
partneriaid cyflenwi, byddwn yn disgwyl y caiff ei gwblhau ar gyfer pob prosiect ysgol 
a ariennir gan y Rhaglen. Cesglir data sylfaenol cyn i’r prosiect gychwyn a chesglir 
data am y prosiect a gwblhawyd ym mlwyddyn 1, 2 a 5 ar ôl i’r prosiect gael ei 
gwblhau. 
 
Mae adran gweithredu Adeiladau’r arolwg gwerthuso adeiladau a ddefnyddir yn 
casglu gwybodaeth ar filiau cyfleustodau, defnydd ynni, perfformiad a defnyddio 
technolegau adnewyddadwy a dŵr. Mae’r adran yn casglu gwybodaeth ar y canlynol 
mewn ysgolion: 

 Tystysgrif Ynni i’w Harddangos; 

 Defnydd trydan (prif gyflenwad a thechnolegau adnewyddadwy); a 

 Defnydd gwres (nwy o’r prif gyflenwad a thechnolegau adnewyddadwy). 
 
Er mai gofyniad ariannu EPC yw y dylai prosiectau gyflawni gradd ‘A’, dylai’r arolwg 
alluogi awdurdodau lleol a Llywodraeth Cymru i gydnabod unrhyw fwlch mewn 
perfformiad ar ôl i’r ysgol agor. Trwy fonitro Tystysgrifau Ynni i’w Harddangos bydd 
modd gweld bwriad dyluniad a defnydd ynni go iawn a sut gall hyn wella neu 
waethygu dros amser.  
 
 
Cymorth technegol – roedd gennym dystiolaeth gan Gomisiwn Dylunio Cymru 
ei fod yn glir nad yw eu gwasanaethau’n cael eu defnyddio fel y dylent i 
gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflenwi’r Rhaglen. Hoffem i Lywodraeth Cymru ailfeddwl 
am y ffordd orau i ddefnyddio’r Comisiwn Dylunio i gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflenwi 
Band B yn llwyddiannus wrth ochr yr ystyriaeth a roddir i’r cymorth technegol 
ehangach y mae ei hangen. Er i chi esbonio bod y cymorth a roddwyd hyd yma 
gan Wobrau Rhagoriaeth Adeiladu wedi bod ar gyfer tri phrosiect arwahanol, 
mae aelodau’n parhau i bryderu a fydd cymorth technegol digonol ar gael i 
gefnogi’r gwaith o gyflenwi’r Rhaglen yn y don nesaf. Llywodraeth Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



 

 
7 

ddylai penderfynu pwy sy’n rhoi’r gefnogaeth honno. Fodd bynnag, byddem 
yn croesawu diweddariad ar eich cynlluniau yng nghyd-destun argymhelliad 
10 yn adroddiad yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol a chymryd i ystyriaeth y gwersi a 
ddysgwyd gan effaith y cymorth technegol a ddarparwyd yn ystod Band A ac 
unrhyw gyfyngiadau capasiti/gallu yng nghyfrifoldeb y sefydliad ar gyfer 
cyflenwi prosiectau.  
 
Pan ysgrifennais atoch ddiwethaf, soniais ein bod wedi defnyddi’r Comisiwn Dylunio i 
ddarparu mewnbwn ar ddechrau Band A a’n bod yn bwriadu gwneud yr un peth ar 
gyfer Band B. Ers mis Awst mae swyddogion wedi cyfarfod â Chomisiwn Dylunio 
Cymru ddwywaith i drafod eu rôl o ran cefnogi’r Rhaglen. Bydd y sgwrs hon yn 
parhau a bydd ffocws ar annog ein partneriaid cyflenwi i ymgysylltu â’r Comisiwn ar 
gyfnod cynharach yn y broses ddylunio nag yw’r achos ar hyn o bryd. 
 
Un o’r buddion allweddol sy’n dod o Fand A y Rhaglen oedd y corff sylweddol o 
arbenigedd a gwybodaeth am gyflenwi a adeiladwyd gyda’n partneriaid cyflenwi. 
Mae gweithdy a gynhaliwyd gyda’n partneriaid cyflenwi yn ddiweddar i adolygu’r 
gwersi a ddysgwyd gan Fand A gan edrych ar baratoi ar gyfer Band B wedi 
cadarnhau bod y mwyafrif yn hyderus eu bod yn meddu ar y sgiliau a’r wybodaeth i 
gyflenwi Band B yn effeithiol. Fodd bynnag, byddwn yn parhau i gomisiynu, tynnu ar 
brofiad a darparu arbenigedd a chymorth allanol yn ôl yr angen.   
 
Yn nhermau MIM, mae rhai o’n partneriaid cyflenwi yn meddu ar brofiad o gyflenwi 
cynlluniau Partneriaethau Cyhoeddus-Preifat. Fodd bynnag, rydym yn cydnabod nad 
hynny yw’r achos yn gyffredinol a bydd angen tîm amlddisgyblaethol yn y canol er 
mwyn rhoi cyngor a chymorth. Cytunwyd ar adnoddau ar gyfer hyn gyda’r Gweinidog 
ac mae’r broses recriwtio ar gyfer rolau allweddol ar waith. Caiff gwead a chapasiti’r 
swyddogaeth hon eu hadolygu’n gyson i sicrhau bod hyn yn parhau i fod yn 
effeithiol.   
 
 
Buddion i’r Gymuned – rydym yn croesawu’r ymrwymiad i fuddion i’r 
gymuned. Mae’n glir y ceir cymhlethdodau o ran sicrhau bod cyfleusterau 
ysgolion ar gael i’r gymuned. Rydym yn cydnabod mai cyfrifoldeb y corff 
llywodraethu yw hyn yn bennaf. Fodd bynnag, mae gan Lywodraeth Cymru a 
chynghorau ddylanwad sylweddol trwy’r ariannu a ddarperir trwy’r Rhaglen. 
Hoffem dderbyn sicrwydd bod Llywodraeth Cymru’n defnyddio’r dylanwad 
hwnnw i’r effaith fwyaf i sicrhau bod ysgolion a ariennir gan y rhaglen yn 
gwneud eu cyfleusterau’n agored i ddefnydd cymunedol lle bynnag y bo modd 
a’i fod yn ddichonadwy.  
 
Ym mis Awst, soniais ein bod wedi sefydlu grŵp gorchwyl a gorffen i ystyried ffyrdd o 
oresgyn neu ddileu rhwystrau, i annog y gymuned ehangach i ddefnyddio asedau 
addysgol ac i ledaenu arfer gorau a chyllid. 
 
Fel y nodwyd yn gynharach yn y papur hwn rydym yn mynd i ailosod nodau strategol 
y rhaglen fel bod yr ail don o fuddsoddi yn ceisio darparu cenhedlaeth newydd o 
ysgolion a cholegau sy’n ganolfannau dysgu ar gyfer eu cymunedau ehangach. 
Rydym hefyd yn dymuno i’r Rhaglen edrych ar ddarparu rhagor o hybiau ar gyfer 
gwasanaethau cymunedol, gan gynnig nid yn unig addysg, ond amrywiaeth 

Tudalen y pecyn 64



 

 
8 

ehangach o weithgareddau i’r gymuned trwy gynllunio gwell a chyfuno cyllidebau 
seilwaith.  
 
Ym mis Hydref roedd Datganiad Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cynnwys  £15 
miliwn o gymorth cyfalaf i ariannu prosiectau arloesol a fydd yn helpu i ddangos yr 
hyn sy’n bwysig yn nhermau ysgolion yn dod yn hybiau ar gyfer gwasanaethau 
cymunedol. Estynnwyd gwahoddiad i wneud cais am yr arian hwn i awdurdodau lleol 
ar 30 Tachwedd.   
 
Bwriadwn i’r prosiectau llwyddiannus gael eu symud yn eu blaen yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ariannol nesaf. Dilynir hyn gan arweiniad ac astudiaethau achos i annog y gwaith o 
ledu arfer da a goresgyn rhwystrau sy’n atal y gymuned rhag defnyddio cyfleusterau 
addysgol. 
 
 
Teithio llesol – nid ydym yn argyhoeddedig y rhoddir ystyriaeth ddigonol i 
Ddeddf Teithio Llesol (Cymru) 2013. Ymddengys bod eich llythyr diweddaraf 
yn cydnabod angen am lefel uwch o graffu a herio ynghylch hyn a hoffem ofyn 
am eglurhad o ran yr hyn y bydd hyn yn ei olygu yn ymarferol. Pe bai modd i 
Lywodraeth Cymru bwysleisio enghreifftiau penodol lle y mae cyfleoedd 
teithio llesol wedi’u cynyddu i’r eithaf yna byddai gennym ddiddordeb mewn 
dysgu amdanynt. Yn yr un modd, enghreifftiau o fynd i’r afael ag astudiaethau 
achos lle y rhoddir ystyriaeth wael i fynediad i deithio llesol.  
 
Ym mis Awst, soniais ein bod wedi diweddaru ein canllawiau ar achosion busnes er 
mwyn cynnwys negeseuon allweddol yn ymwneud â theithio llesol. Mae’r lefel uwch 
o graffu ar achosion busnes yn nhermau cydymffurfio â’r Ddeddf Teithio Llesol yn 
gweithio’n dda. Dros y misoedd diwethaf cafwyd nifer o enghreifftiau da lle nad oedd 
gofynion teithio llesol wedi’u manylu’n ddigonol mewn achosion busnes ar gyfer 
derbyn buddsoddiad a gofynnwyd i awdurdodau lleol am wybodaeth bellach ar sut y 
byddant yn galluogi disgyblion i deithio’n llesol i’r ysgol; pa lwybrau cerdded, beiciau 
a sgwteri sydd ar gael; ac ar ddarpariaeth cyfleusterau beicio, megis storio. Rydym 
yn ymwybodol o bryderon y Pwyllgor yn y maes hwn, a byddwn yn parhau i adolygu 
hyn yn ystod oes y Rhaglen.   

Tudalen y pecyn 65



 

 
9 

3. Cynnydd yn erbyn argymhellion yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol 
 
 
Roedd y dystiolaeth a roddais i’r Pwyllgor ar 8 Mehefin 2018 yn cynnwys 
diweddariad ar y camau gweithredu a gymerwyd mewn ymateb i’r argymhellion 
penodol yn adroddiad yr Archwilydd Cyffredinol. Yr adeg honno, roedd tri o’r deg 
argymhelliad wedi’u cwblhau. Mae’r wybodaeth isod yn rhoi diweddariad ar yr 
argymhellion sy’n weddill.  
 
Argymhelliad Dau 

Wrth symud ymlaen, mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n debygol o wneud newidiadau 
sylweddol i’r ffordd y caiff y Rhaglen ei hariannu a’i rheoli. Bydd angen i 
Lywodraeth Cymru gwblhau’r trefniadau llywodraethu a ddiweddarwyd ar 
gyfer Band B y Rhaglen sy’n rhoi sylw perthnasol i: 

 Gymhlethdodau sy’n gwneud defnydd o ariannu refeniw, dysgu o 
brofiadau yn rhannau eraill o’r Deyrnas Unedig; ac 

 Unrhyw newidiadau i gydbwysedd yr ariannu rhwng partneriaid. 
 

Cwblhawyd  
Mae’r trefniadau llywodraethu ar gyfer Band B wedi’u hadolygu a’u hadnewyddu wrth 
ochr ein partneriaid cyflenwi. Cytunwyd ar aelodaeth a Chylch Gorchwyl Bwrdd y 
Rhaglen a Phanel Buddsoddi diwygiedig ar gyfer y Rhaglen. Mae’r ddau gorff wedi 
cynnal cyfarfod. Mae aelodaeth o’r Grŵp Craffu Achosion Busnes hefyd wedi’i 
hadnewyddu i gynnwys CADW ac eraill. 
 
Mae’r cydbwysedd ariannu ar gyfer cynlluniau a ariennir gan gyllid cyfalaf a refeniw 
wedi newid yn ddiweddar a chaiff ei adolygu’n barhaus i sicrhau ei fod yn parhau i 
fod yn gytbwys yn nhermau fforddiadwyedd ar draws pob partner. 
 
Argymhelliad Pedwar 

Helpodd arolwg cyflwr cenedlaethol a gynhaliwyd yn 2010 i roi llinell sylfaen 
glir ar gyflwr ac addasrwydd ystâd yr ysgol er cafwyd ychydig o adrodd ar 
ddata na chynnydd y rhaglen yn genedlaethol yn gyhoeddus. Ers hynny, mae 
cynghorau wedi diweddaru eu data yn flynyddol. Hefyd cynhaliwyd arolwg 
sampl yn 2016 i asesu cysondeb data. Gan ystyried cyfran yr ysgolion y 
beirniadwyd eu bod wedi’u categoreiddio’n anghywir, argymhellwn fod 
Llywodraeth Cymru’n: 

a. Dosbarthu arweiniad a ddiweddarwyd ar frys ar ddosbarthu ysgolion, 
gan nodi unrhyw faterion a gwallau cyffredin a adnabuwyd yn yr arolwg 
sampl; 

b. Rhoi gofyniad ar gynghorau i ddiweddaru eu hasesiad ar bob ysgol, yn 
seiliedig ar yr arweiniad a ddiweddarwyd. 

c. Cynnal arolwg arall ar sampl o ddata i wirio bod cynghorau’n 
cymhwyso’r categorïau’n gywir ac yn gyson; ac yn 

ch. Adrodd ar gynnydd yn gyhoeddus i wella cyflwr ac addasrwydd ystâd yr 
ysgol wrth ochr cyflawni buddion ehangach. 

 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 66



 

 
10 

A, B a D wedi’u cwblhau, C yn cael ei adolygu 
Dosbarthwyd canllawiau diwygiedig ar y fethodoleg a ddefnyddiwyd yn ystod ein 
harolwg sampl i awdurdodau lleol a cholegau yn 2017. Daeth y canllawiau a’r 
fethodoleg yn orfodol yn 2018/19, sef y flwyddyn gyntaf y mae pob un o’n partneriaid 
wedi defnyddio’r dull diwygiedig ar gyfer eu harolwg cyflwr. Ar ôl i’r holl ddata gael ei 
dderbyn a’i ddadansoddi, ystyrir gweithredu pellach gan gynnwys a fyddai arolwg 
sampl yn angenrheidiol i brofi’r data. 
 
I sicrhau lefel uwch o dryloywder wrth adrodd, rydym yn diweddaru’r wefan Ysgolion 
ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif yn barhaus i adrodd ar gynnydd y rhaglen parthed gwella 
ystâd yr ysgol a buddion ehangach y rhaglen. Ar ddiwedd Band A, byddwn yn 
cyhoeddi manylion am brosiectau a gwblhawyd ar ein gwefan i ddangos buddsoddi 
ledled Cymru. Rydym hefyd yn cynllunio ehangu ein portffolio prosiectau ar-lein i 
gynnwys ffotograffau o brosiectau a gwblhawyd yn ddiweddar. 
  
Argymhelliad Chwech 

Nid yw rhai o adeiladau newydd yr ysgolion yn cyrraedd targedau 
effeithlonrwydd ynni a chynaliadwyedd Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer y rhaglen. 
Argymhellwn fod Llywodraeth Cymru’n gweithio gyda chynghorau i: 

a. Gysylltu ag arbenigwyr diwydiant i ddeall y bwlch rhwng perfformiad 
effeithlonrwydd ynni disgwyliedig a’r hyn a gyflawnwyd a sut y gellid ei 
ddatrys a’i ostwng ym mhrosiectau’r dyfodol. 

b. Herio achosion busnes sy’n dibynnu ar arbedion sylweddol trwy 
dechnoleg effeithlonrwydd ynni yn yr asesiad cost oes gyfan yn gadarn; 
ac 

c. Annog ysgolion i asesu eu defnydd ynni pan gaiff yr adeilad ei 
feddiannu yn y lle cyntaf ac yna’n flynyddol i sicrhau eu bod yn elwa o’r 
arbedion disgwyliedig mewn costau ynni dro ar ôl tro. 

 
Cwblhawyd 
Paratowyd Canllaw Arfer Gorau a chafodd ei gyflwyno i bartneriaid busnes yn ystod 
tri digwyddiad seminar a gynhaliwyd ym mis Mai 2017. Paratowyd y Canllaw gan 
Ragoriaeth Adeiladu Cymru mewn ymgynghoriaeth â’r diwydiant adeiladu. Mae ein 
Canllaw i Achosion Busnes wedi’i ddiwygio i gymryd i ystyriaeth y datblygiadau 
diweddaraf hyn a chafodd ei gyhoeddi ym mis Mai 2018. 
 
Caiff pob achos busnes a dderbynnir ei graffu gan economegydd yn ystod y broses 
asesu i sicrhau y caiff gwerth am arian prosiectau ei herio’n gadarn gan gynnwys 
rhoi ystyriaeth i gostau oes gyfan ac adnabod gostyngiadau posib mewn costau o 
ganlyniad i’r gwaith adeiladu. Mae ein heconomegwyr wedi cynnal tri digwyddiad 
Hyfforddiant Achos Economaidd ar gyfer ein partneriaid busnes sydd wedi gwella eu 
dealltwriaeth o’r gofynion i achosion busnes ddangos gwerth am arian yn glir.   
 
Datblygwyd adolygiad o adeiladau a ddefnyddir sy’n dal ystod o wybodaeth gan 
gynnwys lefelau disgwyliedig yr ynni a ddefnyddir mewn adeilad newydd neu adeilad 
a adnewyddwyd a’r defnydd go iawn ar ôl i’r adeilad gael ei ddefnyddio i sicrhau bod 
yr arbedion yn cael eu gwneud yn unol â’r disgwyliadau. Bydd defnyddio’r adolygiad 
yn sicrhau y caiff data llinell sylfaen ei gasglu cyn i’r prosiect gychwyn, gan gasglu 
data dilynol ar ôl i’r prosiect gael ei gwblhau ym mlwyddyn 1, 2 a 5 ar ôl iddo gael ei 
gwblhau. 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



 

 
11 

Argymhelliad Saith 
Mae dadansoddiad o’r costau o brosiectau Band A a gwblhawyd yn dangos 
amrywiaeth sylweddol yng nghyfanswm y costau yn ogystal â chostau TGCh a 
gosodiadau a chyfarpar. Mae ysgolion newydd wedi mynd y tu hwnt i 
uchafswm safonau ardaloedd diwydiant gan 7-10%. Mae rhai prosiectau’n 
defnyddio dull o’r enw Modelu Gwybodaeth am Adeiladau yn ystod y cyfnodau 
dylunio ac adeiladu a dangosir bod hyn yn cynnig arbedion o ran amser a 
chostau yn ogystal â gwella ansawdd. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru adeiladu ar y 
gwaith a gyflawnwyd eisoes i:  

a. Gyrraedd cytundeb gyda chynghorau, partneriaid eraill a chynrychiolwyr 
diwydiant ar yr opsiynau i gynnig lefelau uwch o safoni i’r prosiectau 
gan gynnwys ardal y llawr ac elfennau o’r gwaith adeiladu; 

b. Sicrhau gofyniad i ddefnyddio’r Modelu Gwybodaeth am Adeiladu mewn 
prosiectau sy’n rhan o’r rhaglen; a 

c. Rhoi arweiniad mwy manwl ynghylch lefel y TG a gosodiadau a 
chyfarpar y gellir ei ariannu trwy’r rhaglen i sicrhau cysondeb rhwng 
prosiectau. 

 
Cwblhawyd 
Mae safonau costau a meintiau meincnodi ar gyfer gwaith adeiladu ac ar gyfer TG a 
gosodiadau, ffitiadau a chyfarpar wedi’u cymeradwyo gan Fwrdd y Rhaglen a’r Panel 
Buddsoddi. Caiff y rhain eu cymhwyso a’u profi yn ystod y broses craffu ar achosion 
busnes ar gyfer Band B. 
 
Caiff Modelu Gwybodaeth am Adeiladau ei gymhwyso i’r Rhaglen ar ôl cytuno ar 
ddull Llywodraeth Cymru gyfan a’i gymeradwyo. Nid oes gennym ddyddiad eto ar 
gyfer hyn. Caiff cynnydd ar hyn ei fonitro gan Dîm y Rhaglen a’i adrodd i Fwrdd y 
Rhaglen.  
 
 
Argymhelliad Wyth 
Ceir tystiolaeth nad yw’r fframweithiau caffael rhanbarthol yn gweithredu yn ôl 
y disgwyl gan brofi ychydig o ddyblygu a rhai cynghorau’n peidio â 
mabwysiadu arfer da ar gyfer dulliau caffael. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru: 

a. Sicrhau bod cynghorau yn mabwysiadu arfer da a dderbynnir o ran y 
dull a ddefnyddir ar gyfer adeiladu gan gynnwys rhagdybiaeth o blaid 
dyluniad ac adeiladu (ac eithrio prosiectau a ariennir trwy’r Model 
Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol); 

b. Gwella dulliau cyfathrebu â diwydiant ar yr amseru a’r raddfa waith 
debygol o dan y fframweithiau; 

c. Deall a mynd i’r afael â’r rhesymau pam bod rhai cynghorau’n cynnal 
ymarferiadau cyn tendro er bod contractwyr eisoes wedi profi’r un 
broses i gael eu cynnwys ar y fframweithiau; ac 

ch. Ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid, gan gynnwys cynghorau a’r diwydiant 
adeiladu wrth ddatblygu a chwblhau’r fframwaith caffael yn sgil y 
newidiadau ar gyfer Band B. 

 
Cwblhawyd 
Yn ogystal â’r diweddariad a roddwyd ym mis Mehefin ar 8a ac 8c, caiff 
fframweithiau caffael eu hadolygu a’u hail-dendro yn rheolaidd i sicrhau eu bod yn 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



 

 
12 

unol ag arfer da. Mae gan bob Fframwaith awdurdod lleol ‘arweiniol’ sy’n gyfrifol am 
reoli’r broses hon ynghyd â chyfathrebu â’r diwydiant. Mae aelodau’r Fframwaith yn 
cyfarfod yn rheolaidd i drafod materion ac i rannu arfer da.   
 
Caiff prosesau caffael a gwerth am arian eu profi gan gydweithwyr Gwerth Cymru yn 
ystod pob cyfnod o’r broses craffu ar achosion busnes. Trwy ymgysylltu diweddar 
ymddengys bod nifer o resymau pam bod rhai awdurdodau’n dymuno cynnal 
ymarferiadau cyn tendro. Mae’n digwydd yn fwyaf cyffredin pan fo sypynnu 
cynlluniau’n ddymunol. Mae’r ymarferiad hwn yn sicrhau nad oes unrhyw heriau 
caffael pe dilynir y llwybr hwn.   
 
Cynhaliwyd digwyddiadau diwrnod y farchnad a chynadleddau gyda’r diwydiant 
adeiladu ac eraill i’w paratoi ar gyfer Band B a MIM. Yn ddiweddarach, mynychodd 
130 o gynrychiolwyr ddiwrnod gwybodaeth a gynhaliwyd ar 6 Tachwedd i glywed am 
Raglen Addysg MIM. Ymhlith y mynychwyr roedd contractwyr, arianwyr a 
chynghorwyr o’r sector preifat yn ogystal â chynrychiolwyr o awdurdodau lleol a 
cholegau.  
  
Bydd yr ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid, gan gynnwys awdurdodau lleol, sefydliadau 
addysg bellach a’r diwydiant adeiladu, yn parhau drwy gydol y broses o gyflawni 
Band B. 
 
Argymhelliad Naw 
Erbyn hyn mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi sefydlu’n fwy clir nag yn y gorffennol 
pa fuddion y mae’n dymuno eu cyflawni trwy’r rhaglen. Mae wedi sefydlu set o 
dargedau arwahanol ar gyfer y gadwyn gyflenwi leol, prentisiaethau a 
hyfforddiant ac ymgysylltu STEM gydag ysgolion. 
 
Mae hefyd yn glir mai blaenoriaeth yn y dyfodol fydd cynyddu defnydd y 
gymuned o adeiladau ysgolion. I gynyddu’r buddion ehangach o ganlyniad i 
fuddsoddi yn y rhaglen dylai Llywodraeth Cymru: 

a. Sicrhau bod ei thargedau ar gyfer prosiectau’n parhau’n heriol dros 
amser; 

b. Hyrwyddo arfer da o ran cyflawni buddion cymunedol, er enghraifft trwy 
ddiweddaru gwefan Ysgolion ar Gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif yn gyson, 
rhwydweithiau rhanbarthol a digwyddiadau diwydiant; ac 

c. Adolygu sut gellid mynd i’r afael â’r rhwystrau a adnabuwyd rhag 
cynyddu defnydd cymunedol o adeiladau ysgolion yn ystod Band B y 
rhaglen. 

 
Cwblhawyd 
Caiff buddion a thargedau’r rhaglen eu hadolygu’n rheolaidd gan Fwrdd y Rhaglen a 
Phanel Buddsoddi’r Rhaglen wrth ochr cydweithwyr polisi megis Gwerth Cymru. 
Cynhaliwyd tri seminar Buddion Cymunedol gyda phartneriaid yn ystod yr haf 2018. 
Mae astudiaethau achos arfer da wedi’u comisiynu er mwyn rhannu’r rhain ar y 
wefan. 
 
Caiff y rhaglen ei hail-lansio gyda phartneriaid cyn hir gan roi pwyslais penodol ar 
ddefnydd ehangach gan y gymuned. Mae’n debygol y caiff y Rhaglen ei hail-enwi fel 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



 

 
13 

y Rhaglen Ysgolion a Cholegau ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif gan gynnwys yr is-bennawd 
‘Ardaloedd Cymunedol er mwyn Dysgu’.   
 
Caiff targedau buddion i’r gymuned a defnydd o asedau gan y gymuned eu profi gan 
gydweithwyr polisi yn ystod y broses craffu ar achosion busnes. Caiff targedau 
buddion i’r gymuned eu cynnwys yn ein llythyron dyfarnu grantiau. Ni chaiff ernes 
ariannu ei thalu os nad yw targedau’n cael eu cyrraedd. Yn ogystal rydym yn 
gweithio gyda meysydd portffolio eraill i adeiladu defnydd ehangach o asedau 
ysgolion gan y gymuned i’r telerau ariannu ar gyfer prosiectau. 
 
 
Argymhelliad Deg 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi rhoi trefniadau mewn lle ar gyfer cymorth 
technegol i’r rhaglen. Mae wedi cryfhau capasiti ei thîm ei hun trwy recriwtio 
arbenigwyr ym maes cyllid cyhoeddus-preifat. Mae hefyd yn sefydlu 
contractau fframwaith i roi cymorth technegol i gynghorau. Gan ystyried y 
newidiadau technegol i’r rhaglen o dan Fand B dylai Llywodraeth Cymru, ar 
ddiwedd 2018, gynnal adolygiad llawn ynghylch a yw’r trefniadau’n gweithio i: 

a. Ddarparu’r arbenigedd technegol i Lywodraeth Cymru y mae ei angen 
arni i reoli ac i oruchwylio’r rhaglen; a 

b. Darparu’r cymorth technegol i gynghorau y mae ei angen arnynt i 
gynllunio ac i gyflenwi’r rhaglen yn lleol. 

 
 
Cwblhawyd 
Cytunwyd ar adnoddau ar gyfer arbenigedd technegol mewnol gan y Gweinidog ac 
eir ati i recriwtio Tîm Rhaglen MIM estynedig. Bydd y tîm yn rhoi cymorth 
uniongyrchol i bartneriaid cyflenwi. Bydd y tîm hefyd yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid 
posib eraill, megis Comisiwn Dylunio Cymru, i sicrhau bod cyngor a chymorth 
arbenigol ar gael yn ôl yr angen.   
 
Caiff capasiti a gwead y tîm ei adolygu’n rheolaidd gan Fwrdd y Rhaglen a Phanel 
Buddsoddi’r Rhaglen i sicrhau ei fod yn diwallu anghenion bob un sy’n rhan o’r 
Rhaglen.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



 

 
14 

Atodiad A 
 

Cynnydd ym Mand A 

yn ôl awdurdod lleol – 
Chwefror 2019 

Nifer y 
prosiectau 

Achos Busnes 

llawn wedi’i 
dderbyn  

 

Achos 
Cyfiawnhau 

Busnes 
wedi’i 

dderbyn 

Wedi’i 

gymeradwyo 
gan FBC/BJC  

Yn cael ei 
adeiladu 

Wedi’i 

gwblhau 
 

Abertawe 9 5 4 9 1 7 

Blaenau Gwent 4 2 2 4 1 3 

Bro Morgannwg 8 1 7 8 
 

8 

Caerdydd 24 10 14 24 1 23 

Caerffili 6 3 2 6 1 3 

Casnewydd 6 2 4 6 2 4 

Castell-nedd Port 
Talbot 

6 6 
 

6 
 

6 

Ceredigion 4 2 2 4 2 2 

Conwy 4 1 3 4 1 3 

Gwynedd 7 5 2 7 1 6 

Merthyr Tudful 2 2 
 

2 
 

1 

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 6 4 2 6 
 

6 

Powys 7 4 2 6 3 2 

Rhondda Cynon 
Taf 

11 11 
 

11 1 10 

Sir Benfro 10 7 2 9 2 8 

Sir Ddinbych 8 5 3 8 1 5 

Sir Fôn 4 3 
 

3 1 2 

Sir Fynwy 3 2 1 3 
 

3 

Sir Gaerfyrddin 15 7 7 13 2 9 

Sir y Fflint 4 4 
 

4 1 3 

Torfaen 9 6 3 9 2 7 

Wrecsam 9 3 6 9 2 6 

Addysg Bellach 9 5 4 9 3 6 

  175 100 70 170 27 134 

 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 71


	Agenda
	2 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - sesiwn dystiolaeth 8
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 1 - Conffederasiwn GIG Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 2 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Bae Abertawe (Saesneg yn unig)
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 3 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda (Saesneg yn unig)
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 4 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr (Saesneg yn unig)
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 5 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan (Saesneg yn unig)
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 6 - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - sesiwn dystiolaeth 9
	4 Bil Plant (Diddymu Amddiffyniad Cosb Resymol) (Cymru) - sesiwn dystiolaeth 10
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papur 9 - Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon Teulu (Saesneg yn unig)
	CYPE(5)-16-19 - Papr 10 - Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol (Saesneg yn unig)

	5.1 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus -  Diweddariad Llywodraeth Cymru ar y rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif

